
ELGIN HERITAGE COMMISSION 
Tuesday, February 6, 2018 

7:00pm 
 

City Council Chambers, 2nd Floor North Tower 
150 Dexter Court, Elgin, IL 60120 

 
AGENDA 

A. Call Meeting to Order and Roll Call 
 

B. Approval of Minutes 
1. January 2, 2018 – Elgin Heritage Commission 

 

C. Recognize Persons Present 
 

D. Plaque Applications 
1. 413 Douglas Avenue 

 

E. Old Business 
1. Reports from Neighborhood Groups on Heritage Related Activities 
2. 2018 Elgin Heritage Commission Goals 

a. Directional Signage, 2018 
(a) Signage Design Review Meeting – 2/13/2018 at 7:00PM City Council 

Chambers 
b. Historic Resources Survey 

(i) Update 
c. Web Based App 

(a) Photographs/Audio  
(i) Update at April 3 meeting  

d. Elgin Historic District and Landmark Design Guidelines 
e. Preservation Month Planning 

(a) Update on location for Mayor’s Awards 
(b) Review cost estimates for caterer 
(c) Review costs for additional items 

 

F. New Business 
1. Historic Rehabilitation Grants – Announced – due date Friday, March 30, 2018 

a. Discuss edits to point system 
 

G. Other Business 
 

H. Adjournment 
THE CITY OF ELGIN IS SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990.  
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES WHO PLAN TO ATTEND THIS MEETING AND WHO REQUIRED CERTAIN 
ACCOMMODATIONS IN ORDER TO ALLOW THEM TO OBSERVE AND/OR PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING, OR WHO 
HAVE QUESTIONS REGARDING THE ACCESSIBILITY OF THE MEETING OR THE FACILITIES, ARE REQUESTED TO 
CONTACT THE HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT, ADA COORDINATOR AT (847) 931-5620 {TDD (847) 931-5616} 
PROMPTLY TO ALLOW THE CITY OF ELGIN TO MAKE REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS FOR THOSE PERSONS.  















integrate them into the community. Services are provided in English and 
Spanish. As of 2018, there is a training center 1135 Bowes Road in Elgin.  

In 1997, Laura Rios purchased the house. Beginning in 2005, the house 
underwent many changes of ownership. Rios transferred it to Ronald and Dolores 
Glogowski in 2005. They then transferred it to Daniel Gurau and Tara Gallo of 
Melrose Park IL in 2007.  Gallo deeded the property to the New York Bank of 
Mellon in foreclosure in 2011. The current owners purchased the house in 2012. 
 
ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE 
Legal description: North Part of Lot 1 of block 14 of Phineas J. Kimball Junior’s third 
addition to Elgin. 
1903 Dwelling 
The Shingle Style house currently standing at 413 Douglas Avenue is listed in the 
1902 year-end building report as having been built for Henry Schoonhoven at a cost 
of $4200.  Possibly, it was designed by noted architect David Postle, but this has not 
been confirmed. Henry built this house after the death of his first wife, Martha, in 
1901, and before his second marriage in 1910 to Adeline. It replaced an earlier 
Henry Schoonhoven residence. 
 
Typical of Elgin Shingle Style homes, the characteristic shingle cladding is present 
only on the upper story, with clapboard cladding on the first story. Shingle Style was 
popular between 1880 and 1910, typified by continuous shingle cladding on the 
exterior and the roof, without corner boards to interrupt the shingling. The façade is 
asymmetrical, with an irregular roofline, often steeply pitched with intersecting 
cross-gables and multi-level eaves. Extensive porches are common.  15% have a 
hipped roof with cross gables, 20% are side-gabled, 20% front-gabled, 20% cross-
gabled and 25% gambrel roofed. (McAlester A Field Guide to American Houses). 413 
Douglas exhibits multi-level eaves, asymmetrical façade, and once had an extensive 
porch across the front elevation and along the south elevation. 
 
413 Douglas is an example of the cross-gabled configuration. Noteworthy 
architectural elements include the polygonal front dormer with its pedimented 
gable and decorative brackets, and the rounded oriel bay on the north elevation. 
 
c. 1880 Dwelling 
The 1880 birds-eye map of Elgin shows three houses on the east side of Douglas 
between Cherry and Seneca Streets, of which 413 would be the middle one. Since 
the maps were hand-drawn, it is not possible to infer exact architectural detailing, 
but it is drawn as a two-story front-gabled house with a one-story wing on the rear. 
Similarly, the house appears on the 1887 and 1891 Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps as 
a narrow two-story front gabled, wood-clad building with front and side porches, 
and an offset one-story wing on the southeast side. Based on the age and footprint of 
the original house on the lot, it was probably a simple vernacular gable-front design. 
The 1895 birds-eye map shows the large 1892 house at 409 Douglas, which 
obscures the view of Henry’s smaller house to the north.  



 
In 1886, Abraham Sherwood purchased part of Lot 1 in Block 17, financing it for 
$3200. This price indicates that a house was on the property. Ira Russell bought the 
house in 1891 from A. Sherwood for $5000. In 1892, this lot was split, and the south 
portion became 409 Douglas.  In 1893 Henry purchased 413 Douglas, the north part 
of lot 1, from Ira Russell for the sum of $3900. 
 
ALTERATIONS   
The flat-roofed room addition on the south elevation was constructed during 1970 
and 1971; the porch on that side was enclosed in 1972. 
The porch was restored to a design compatible with the original architecture in 
2016 with the aid of a Historic Preservation Grant. 
 
At the time of the conversion to a group home in 1984, the city inspected the 
property and required many alterations and repairs: exterior and interior stair 
railings, replacing BX wiring with conduit, installing a safety valve on the water 
heater, replacing wall switches, installing a fire suppression system, replacing rear 
decking, tuck pointing two chimneys, re-roofing and painting the exterior.  
 
City permits:  
1938: re-roof with composition shingles 
193?: repair front porch 
1939: residential card indicates a two-story single-family dwelling with one 
outbuilding 
1939: a 20’x20’ garage was constructed with wood finish and composition roofing. 
1956 or 1958 [date illegible on permit]: rewire kitchen 
1965: electric revision 
1970-71: room addition 
1972: 8’x20’ porch enclosed 
1972: plumbing repairs 
1979: heating repairs 
1984: electric revision and miscellaneous repairs 
 
 
  



Addenda 
Photos of house 2018 and pre-2016 porch 
Deeds: 1893 purchase of 413 Douglas 

1931 mortgage Coleman family 
1934 warranty deed of transfer to Vincent Coleman 
1984 purchase by AID 

1880 birds eye view map excerpt 
1895 birds eye view map excerpt 
Sanborn fire insurance maps 1887, 1891 and 1913 
City directory page 1892-93 
Survey pages 
 

  



 

 
West and south elevations with restored porch 2018 
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